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· ' Ensor' s Sprint_S Garden 

hest side of i1horntor: Lill ~ioad 
I\ot accessible 
Da~e: lb~5-lb20 

~nsor's Spring Garden is a stur¢y two story stone 
traditional house built around 1805-1620 by Daniel Bosley 
and stayed in the Bosley family until 1910. fhe wes~erly 
room was the original kitchen and contains a large fireplace 
fittec with a crane for cooking. Other original trim includes 
chair railing, window and door architraves, beaded panel 
window jambs and six-panel doors with moulded s~iles and 
rails. ~arly outbuildings include a stone spring house, a 
stone ice house, a frame corn crib and a frame bank barn. 
It is a typical example of the self-supporti~g way of life 
d~ring ~he early 19th century. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

ci~ring Garaen is a ~wo story stone house, five oays in 

length (expressed. as three on the rear or north side) with a slightly 

lower two story stone wing, three bays in length, added in sequenc~ 

after the main house was built, probably as a part of the same building 

effort. The general form and details of this house indicate a 

construction date of ca. 1805-1820. 

Entrances to the main house are in the central bay of each 

elevation, and secondary entrances into each of the wing's ~wo rooms 

are side by side within the central bay of the wing's south elevation. 

A one story hipped roof porch extends across all but the end bays of 

the south elevation of both sections; a small cantilevered hood 

shelters the north door to the main house. A small gabled cellar 

entrance extends from the east end, close to the southeast corner. 

windows are 6/6, with narrow frames and formerly with 

shutters or blinds, now missing. il'he central second story window of 

the main house's north facade is slightly lower than flanking 

windows, indicating the stair landing within. 

The gabled roofs of both sections rise above wood cornices, 

probably original, which include the classical bed moul~ing, soffit 

and facia, and crown moulding. Originally self-returned at their 

ends, as indicated b 0 existing conditions at the east end of the wing's 

cornice, they have been extended to· allow heavy eave -eturns and rake 

cornices at the three gable ends. Bric~ chimneys rise flush with each 

of the three gable ends, flanked by small four-light attic windows. 

Internally a central hall, containing the principal stair­

case rising, with intermediate landings, to the third floor, is 

flanked by a single room on each side, each with a fireplace. The 

easterly partition of the ball has been removed in recent years, 

combining the hall and east room as a single space. Two rooms are 

in the wing; an enclosed staircase rises against the dividing 

partition, within the easterly room of the wing. The westerly room 

was the original kitchen and it contains a large (recently ~ebuilt) 

see Continuation Sheet #1 
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II SIGNIFICANCE 
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I Unknown 
BUILDER/ARCHITECT 

Unknown 
SPECIFIC DATES 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Located on the west side of Thornton Mill Road near Western Road, 

this property is known as Spring Garden. (Another Spring Garden in 

this district is the Robert Lewis home on Western Run Road near Cuba 

Road. To add to the confusion, both properties have belonged to the 

Ensor family, although the Lewis farm is believed to be the original). 1 

The house herein described stands on lands called Spring Garden, 

part of Wheeler's Spot and part of Conclusion. Since there are no 

patents to be found for Spring Garden, it is possible that this may have 

been part of a very large tract whose title has been lost, or that it 

received its name at a later date. Nevertheless, the deed may be 

traced to a patent called Wheeler's Garden Spot, assigned to John 

Wheeler in 1746. 2 Benjamin Wheeler Sr. was taxed for 180 acres known 

as Spring Garden and seven old frame and log houses in the Federal 

Direct Tax of 1798. 

In 1801, D2niel Bosley and bis wife, Mary __ Ensor Bosley, bought 

this property and presumably erected the house soon thereafter. The 

1818 Baltimore County tax indicated that the land was improved and 

that Basley had added several new tracts to his holdings. The Bosley 

_family was a large and prominent family in Baltimore County. At the 

time of Daniel Bosley' s death in 1854, all this real estate w.as 

divided between three of his sons, and Spring Garden was assigned to 

John ~. Bosley. Not until 1910 did this house pass from the Bosleys' 

ownership. In that year, it was bought by William L. Ensor, who, 

according -co the present owner was related by marriage to the Bosley 
f amil:,·. 

1. See National Registry, Nomination of Robert Lewis' Spring 
Garden-. +- , • f. # 7 c.. L> -Cen 0 vert1 lC ate , 1 13. Hall of Records, Annapolis ,fv!d. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 
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Ensor ' s Spring Garden 
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Continuation Sheet # 1 

?Question #7 Description (Continued) 

fireplace fitted with a crane for cooking. An enclosed winding stair 
formerly rose north of the kitchen chimney to the room above , formerly 
without communica~ion to the remainder of the second floor . 

The rail of the pricipal stair is round and it is supported by a 
plain square newel; a half- rail reflects it on the op~osite wall . 
The east room ' s mantel includes pilasters supporting a frieze with 
arched panel end and central blocks . Other original trim includes the 
chair railing, the window and door architraves with their cyma- reversa 
with sstrigal backhand , the beaded panel window jambs and the six- panel 
doors with their moulded stiles and rails and partially raised panel . 
Lathing is hand split, fastened with cut nails . Rafters of both sections 
or this house meet at the roof ridge with a half lapped joint, pegged. 

Early outbuildings include a spring house , an ice house, a corn 
crib and a barn. The stone spring house has a gable roof which extends 
over its north wall to shelter its entrance; small louvered windows 
are in other walls . The stone ice house is approximately squar~, 

covered with a framed gable roof; internally its corners are broadly 
rounded . The long narrow framed corn crib, standing on stone foundation , 
has vertical slats covering all its walls . The frame bank barn stands 
on a stone walled ground story; the taller upper loft story cantilevers 
over the south wall of the stalls within . The circular- sawn timbers are 
joined with mortise and tenon joints , pegged, indicating it to be a 
late 19th or early 20th century replacement of the original . 


